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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. JENNY SOBELMAN:  This is the joint 2 

public hearing of the Department of Education 3 

Community Education Council 13 and the School 4 

Leadership Teams to discuss the proposed phase 5 

out of Satellite Three Middle School beginning 6 

in the 2012/2013 year.  Please note that this 7 

evening's proceedings will be recorded and 8 

transcribed.  Before we go on, I also want to 9 

recognize that we are joined this evening by the 10 

principals of PS56, Ms. Principal Clark Johnson 11 

in the back, and the principal of Satellite 12 

Three, Principal Thompson, also in the back.  13 

[Applause]  14 

MS. SOBELMAN:  So again, as we're getting 15 

started, I just sort of want to run through our 16 

agenda this evening.  Anyone who wishes to speak 17 

during the public comment portion of the 18 

evening, please do take this opportunity to make 19 

your way to the back, and you can sign up on the 20 

public comment sheet that was available at the 21 

entrance, and we'll keep that open for about 15 22 

more minutes, and I'll remind you a couple times 23 

to go back and take advantage of that.  Also 24 

once we go through public comment, there will be 25 
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a question and answer session.  So if you're 1 

interested in addressing questions to the 2 

Department, you can take advantage of that 3 

opportunity also where you signed in for public 4 

comment.  Write your questions down on an index 5 

card, and we will take time after the public 6 

comment to respond.  We'll batch some of them 7 

together so we don't repeat answers, and there 8 

may be some questions we don't actually respond 9 

to this evening, but all of the questions will 10 

be mentioned in the announcement to the public 11 

comment, which is published and shared with the 12 

Panel for Educational Policy prior to their vote 13 

and at the February 9th meeting.  14 

So all the panel participants confirmed they 15 

would be here, and we're going to go ahead and 16 

get started in an effort to be respectful of 17 

everyone's time.  If additional panel members do 18 

join us, we'll give them an opportunity to 19 

speak.  We are joined by one representative from 20 

an elected official's office.  He'll speak at 21 

the beginning of the public comment, and if 22 

other representatives join us throughout the 23 

evening, we'll make an opportunity for them to 24 

speak as well.  25 
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So as I said, the agenda for this evening, 1 

is we'll have a presentation of the proposal, 2 

and then the hearing participants will also have 3 

an opportunity to do presentations.  Then we'll 4 

have public comment where anyone who's 5 

interested will have an opportunity to speak for 6 

two minutes, and we'll keep the time.  There's a 7 

gentleman here in the front who will let you 8 

know when you've reached 30 seconds and when 9 

time has elapsed.  Again, in terms of being 10 

respectful of each other, I would ask that 11 

everyone be patient and listen and try and 12 

maintain that two minute window so that we make 13 

sure that everyone this evening has an 14 

opportunity to speak.  15 

Then once we've exhausted the speaker list, 16 

we'll go into that Q&A period.  After the 17 

hearing, if you have additional questions or 18 

comments, we would ask that you please contact 19 

us between now and the hearing, the panel 20 

meeting on February 9th.  And we've got an e-21 

mail, which is D13proposals@schools.nyc.gov, or 22 

by phone at (212) 374-0208.   23 

So now I will introduce the panel that's 24 

assembled for this evening's joint public 25 
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hearing.  Starting at the right, we have Zaher 1 

Idriss.  Oh, wait, there's a new member.  Excuse 2 

me.  Eric Nicholson [phonetic] from the SLT for 3 

Satellite Three.   4 

[Applause]  5 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Zaher Idriss, also from the 6 

Satellite Three STL.  Superintendent Barbara 7 

Franton [phonetic].  From CEC 13, we have Ben 8 

Green.  We have two other representatives from 9 

the CEC, who will be speaking, Kim Gurby and 10 

David Goldsmith.  Arlette Williams from the SLT 11 

for PS56, and Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm.   12 

[Applause]  13 

MS. SOBELMAN:  So I will now turn the 14 

program over to Deputy Chancellor Grimm for a 15 

presentation on the proposal.  16 

MS. KATHLEEN GRIMM:  Thank you very much, 17 

Ms. Sobelman.  Good evening, ladies and 18 

gentlemen.  I want to thank you all for being 19 

here this evening with us.  As you know, this 20 

joint public hearing was convened to discuss the 21 

proposed phase out and replacement of Satellite 22 

Three middle school.  The decision to phase out 23 

a school is not an easy one to make, and we 24 

don't take these decisions lightly.  We examine 25 
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many factors and data before we actually 1 

propose a course of action to take.  And as we 2 

do that, we also reach out to families and to 3 

community members.  Before I present the 4 

Satellite Three proposal, I'd like to say a few 5 

words about why we're here.   6 

All of us count on our schools to provide a 7 

high quality education to students.  And we must 8 

hold all schools to the same standards of 9 

excellence because every child in the city 10 

deserves the very best possible education.  And 11 

when a school isn't getting that job done, we 12 

have to take action to ensure that its current 13 

students don't fall even further behind and that 14 

new students will have even better options.   15 

Satellite Three, as you all know, is located 16 

in building K506, where we all are tonight, at - 17 

- Community School District 13 - - .  It 18 

currently serves students in grades six through 19 

eight.  I'm going to walk through some of the 20 

steps we've taken to arrive at the proposal we 21 

have tonight.  22 

On December 19th last December, the 23 

Department published proposals to phase out and 24 

replace Satellite Three based on its long-25 
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standing performance struggles.  On January 1 

12th, we posted an amended EIS, the term for 2 

Educational Impact Statement that we have to put 3 

out, and that statement corrected the 4 

typographical errors and provided updated 5 

information to everyone about District 3 middle 6 

schools' seed capacity, all of which can be 7 

found in the EIS.   8 

Satellite Three's performance data indicate 9 

that the school has struggled and confirmed our 10 

assessment that the school lacks the capacity to 11 

turn around quickly to better support student 12 

needs.  For example, Satellite Three earned an 13 

overall D rating on its 2010/11 progress report, 14 

including D grades for student progress, student 15 

performance and school environment.  Low 16 

performance at Satellite Three has been a 17 

persistent trend.  18 

In 2010/11, a majority of Satellite Three 19 

students remained below grade level in both 20 

English and math.  And only 19% of students were 21 

performing at grade level in English, and only 22 

34% were performing on grade level in math.  23 

Satellite Three is not adequately helping 24 

students to make progress.  It is the bottom 9% 25 
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of middle schools citywide in terms of learning 1 

growth in English, and the bottom 23% in terms 2 

of learning growth in math.   3 

Learning growth measures annual student 4 

growth on state English language art and math 5 

tests relative to similar students.  If these 6 

outcomes persist, Satellite Three students will 7 

fall further behind their peers in other 8 

schools.  Based on these evaluations, the 9 

Department conducted a comprehensive review of 10 

the school, to determine which supports and 11 

interventions would best benefit the students 12 

and the community.  They also consulted 13 

superintendents and other experienced educators 14 

who have worked closely with this school and 15 

held community meetings with parents and the 16 

school staff to ask for feedback.  17 

Based on this comprehensive review and the 18 

evidence presented, it was clear that additional 19 

supports were not working.  So the Department 20 

believes that with the most serious 21 

intervention, the gradual phase out and eventual 22 

closure of the school, is the only intervention 23 

that addresses its long standing performance 24 

struggles and allows for the school - - to 25 
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develop into something that better serves for 1 

future students and a broader community.  2 

Satellite Three is collocated with PS56, an 3 

elementary school serving students in 4 

kindergarten through fifth grade.  There are 5 

also two District 75 inclusion programs in this 6 

building, P369 and P56, and P369 at 103.  In a 7 

separate EIS, Educational Impact Statement, 8 

posted on December 12, the Department has 9 

proposed to open and collocate a new middle 10 

school, Middle school 351 in this building, and 11 

that school will serve grades six through eight.  12 

The new middle school would admit students 13 

through the District 13 middle school choice 14 

application process with a limited unscreened 15 

admission method.  Before we move to the public 16 

comment section of this meeting, I want to 17 

briefly discuss what the impact of this proposal 18 

will have on current Satellite Three students 19 

and their families, if it is approved.  20 

If approved, Satellite Three will be phased 21 

out gradually over the next several years.  It 22 

will start by next September, no longer 23 

admitting a new sixth grade.  Current sixth and 24 

seventh grade students who meet promotion 25 
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standards at the end of the school year, and 1 

current eighth grade students who do not meet 2 

promotion standards at the end of the year, will 3 

be supported at Satellite Three as they progress 4 

toward completion of middle school and 5 

transition of high school.  So next year, 6 

Satellite Three would have a seventh and eighth 7 

grade, comprised of all the students who move 8 

from sixth and seventh, and the eighth graders 9 

who were not promoted to ninth grade.  10 

The current eighth graders, this year's 11 

eighth graders, who meet promotional 12 

requirements at the end of this year, will apply 13 

to high schools on the citywide high school 14 

admission process.  Current sixth grade students 15 

who do not meet promotional standards at the end 16 

of this school year will have an opportunity, if 17 

they choose, to enroll as a sixth grade student 18 

at MS351.  Satellite Three will close after 19 

2014.   20 

Any Satellite Three students who do not meet 21 

promotion standards by then will be placed at 22 

another District 13 middle school or at a middle 23 

school in the District in which the student 24 

resides.  If the proposals are approved, P369 at 25 
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103, our special ed. programs, inclusion 1 

programs, would continue to exist as Satellite 2 

Three phases out, and it would be associated 3 

with MS351, the new middle school, as it phases 4 

in so that the inclusion program would continue 5 

to be provided in this building.  6 

Now, we acknowledge that middle school 7 

choice applications were due last September 16, 8 

so if this proposal to phase out Satellite Three 9 

is approved by the panel in February, the school 10 

will be removed from the matching process for 11 

the next September admissions, and no current 12 

fifth grade students will be matched to 13 

Satellite Three for the 2012/13 school year.  14 

Additionally, if the proposal to open MS351 is 15 

approved, all students would have the 16 

opportunity to submit a new schools application, 17 

which is part of the high school admissions 18 

process.  19 

Thank you very much for your time and your 20 

patience in listening to this proposal.  We now 21 

look forward to hearing your comments and your 22 

views and to get some of your input on it.  23 

Thank you very much.  24 

[Applause]  25 
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MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much, Deputy 1 

Chancellor.  So now we'll have a presentation 2 

from Ben Green, representing the CEC.  3 

MR. BEN GREEN:  Good evening, everyone.  4 

Tonight is one of those nights that I really 5 

don't want to be sitting up here on the panel 6 

because we're talking about phasing out a school 7 

that personally is in my heart, where I have two 8 

children have graduated from here and have went 9 

to college.   10 

[Applause]  11 

MR. GREEN:  I thought about this very much, 12 

and I've been advocating for Satellite Three.  I 13 

have talked with my colleagues on the CEC, and 14 

we all approve that we are not in favor of this 15 

phase out.  16 

[Applause]  17 

MR. GREEN:  Even though it gives us an 18 

opportunity, and please hold off on the claps.  19 

I understand you're enthused, but we need to 20 

hold off on that because we need to keep that 21 

energy moving forward in making sure we keep 22 

this building here and this school surviving in 23 

this District.  We understand we're getting a 24 

new District school, and we're so enthused about 25 
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getting it.  That's something that the DOE 1 

promised us, instead of giving us a charter 2 

school, so we were happy about that.  But after 3 

long thoughts about it and me personally, this 4 

is my personal thoughts, and not the CEC right 5 

now, is that after thinking on that very hard 6 

and more, I think we need to put the resources 7 

that we would put in for a new middle school 8 

going in this, into Satellite Three.  We would-- 9 

[Applause]  10 

MR. GREEN:  And I would like to see the DOE 11 

look back over this proposal because I've been 12 

knowing the Deputy Chancellor for a very long 13 

time, and she's been very fair all through my 14 

career and all my time being an advocate for 15 

District 13.  I went to school here.  This was 16 

my elementary school, and that was when sixth 17 

grade was here.  I have seen the principals go, 18 

and I've seen principals stay, and I think that 19 

is one of the problems that surrounds this whole 20 

proposal of why they say that Satellite Three 21 

failed our students, is because we had a 22 

revolving door of principals coming in here 23 

after Principal Reed [phonetic] left.  The data 24 

does show and indicate that after Principal Reed 25 
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left, that the school dipped in its progress, 1 

and we needed a strong leader.  I left a meeting 2 

earlier today with the Chancellor, and one of 3 

the things he was talking about was leadership 4 

and the empowering principals with more 5 

oversight over the buildings.  But if you don't 6 

have strong leadership in the buildings, you 7 

can't have correct oversight of it.  And things 8 

will go awry.  It will be chaos, and you cannot 9 

tell--and I always listened to my father when he 10 

used to tell me about this when I was a kid, 11 

when he'd tell me about the chiefs in the 12 

Indians.  Well, if you ain't got a chief--if you 13 

got a bunch of Indians, and you ain't go no 14 

chief, the Indians are going to do whatever they 15 

want to do.  When you get a strong chief, you 16 

see how that tribe thrives.  I think the kids 17 

and the children here in Satellite Three, and I 18 

know when it was disrupted, when Satellite Three 19 

was taken, and the children, that was the ones 20 

and twos, and making them - - threes and fours.  21 

And I think they have that same capability under 22 

the leadership of Principal Thompson.   23 

I remember here when she was at - - Seven, 24 

and she was making a rise over there at - - 25 
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Seven when they were saying they didn't need a 1 

phase out.  They came over here, and I always 2 

believe things happen for a reason, and that's 3 

the reason why she's over here.  So if I was a 4 

betting man and I wanted to bet all my eggs in 5 

one basket on Principal Thompson, she got my 6 

vote.  I rarely say that about principals 7 

because I know they're administration and I know 8 

sometimes they have to make those real tough 9 

choices with things, and we don't see eye to eye 10 

sometimes as parents with administration.  11 

But I really want to say right now, you all 12 

keep up the fight, you all keep struggling with 13 

this, and we're going to be out there advocating 14 

for Satellite Three to stay alive.  If, for 15 

whatever reason, or not, that Satellite Three 16 

does get phased out, the parents of this 17 

community need to put that same effort in making 18 

sure the new middle school that they will 19 

replace it with, that you all get in here and 20 

make it a community new school and that you all 21 

don't let it fail and make sure that you hold 22 

the teachers and administration accountable.  Do 23 

not wait until it gets to the point where 24 

they're talking about phasing out before you let 25 
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the community, your parent leaders, your 1 

community leaders know about it.  Thank you.  2 

[Applause]  3 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Green.  So the 4 

next presentation is made by Zaher Idriss from 5 

the SLT.   6 

MR. ZAHER IDRISS:  Good evening, everyone.  7 

This year we the teachers at Satellite Three, 8 

we're determined to go out and prove that we're 9 

not what our progress report grade says we are.  10 

We were determined to prove that this was a bump 11 

in a long, successful road and that we are going 12 

to bounce back from it.  We were determined to 13 

prove to the DOE that now that we have one 14 

permanent leader in Principal Thompson, things 15 

will be much different, and we will be doing 16 

whatever it takes to show everyone that this is 17 

not what Satellite Three middle school is, not a 18 

D school.  19 

Through the leadership of our new principal, 20 

we were working diligently toward many goals in 21 

setting high expectations for ourselves and our 22 

students, and in meeting these expectations 23 

through a much more focused plan.  Some of the 24 

refocused improvements we have made in just the 25 
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few months include setting individual academic 1 

goals for our students, creating common core 2 

standards aligned curriculum maps, teaching for 3 

understanding by ending each unit with a project 4 

that provides students with an opportunity to 5 

demonstrate understanding, differentiating out 6 

assessments, configuring with our students on a 7 

regular basis, providing monthly progress 8 

reports to our students, which also serves as a 9 

means of communication to the parents to know 10 

what is happening with their child.  We were 11 

more focused knowing that this year is not going 12 

to be like the last year.  13 

This year, we have one principal, not three.  14 

This year, the teachers are collaborating at a 15 

high level and putting tremendous effort to take 16 

the students at Satellite Three and move them to 17 

the next level.  We know what we are, and we 18 

have not forgotten what we did in the past few 19 

years in helping our students achieve at a very 20 

high level.  21 

Our principal is leading a tight ship, with 22 

planning occurring well before September, and 23 

things are not loose as they were during the 24 

transition.  This year, our students have 25 



 18

noticed a change in the tone and organization, 1 

and their work - - have been improving as well.  2 

If you walk through our hallways and enter our 3 

rooms, you will not see a D school.   4 

As I mentioned before, we had three 5 

different principals in a ten month period for 6 

Satellite Three middle school.  Just imagine a 7 

country run by three presidents in one year.  8 

When we finally had the opportunity to work with 9 

a permanently placed principal, we were told it 10 

is too late, we're closing you.  Our students 11 

were gathered to be told the same news.  12 

On that day, everyone left the building 13 

speechless.  How can you say it's all about the 14 

children and then gather the children and 15 

deliver such a demoralizing message?  How would 16 

you feel-- 17 

[Applause]  18 

MR. IDRISS:  How would you feel as a child 19 

to hear that you come on a daily basis to one of 20 

the worst middle schools in New York city?  21 

According to the DOE, we're closing because of 22 

our numbers.  According to them, it doesn't even 23 

matter that we had multiple leaders in a small 24 

period of time, or that our school is now 25 
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approving, and our attendance has gone up.  1 

We're not even getting the chance to receive new 2 

test scores this spring.  Therefore, we would 3 

like to discuss these old numbers.  4 

First let me start with 2007/2008.  Our 5 

progress report grade was a B.  Our ELA scores 6 

were 43%, threes and fours, math scores were at 7 

65%, threes and fours.  Moving to 2008/2009, our 8 

progress report grade was a B.  Our ELA scores 9 

moved up to 59.4%, threes and fours, and our 10 

math scores moved to 67%, threes and fours.  In 11 

2009/2010, our progress report grade was a C.  12 

Our ELA scores were 27%, threes and fours, and 13 

our math scores were 31%, threes and fours.  In 14 

2010/2011, we got a progress report grade of a 15 

D.  Our ELA scores were 19% threes and fours, 16 

but our math scores went up to 34% of threes and 17 

fours.  18 

This might not sound that good, but when we 19 

just do the comparison, when we look at the 20 

scale scores of 2009 and compare it to 2010, we 21 

found out that most of our students really 22 

improved in 2010, and I'm speaking about scale 23 

scores.  But we also found out that these points 24 

were not worth as much anymore, which made our 25 
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school, as well as the best schools in New 1 

York City, look like they did not do enough to 2 

show students' progress.   3 

During 2009/2010 school year, every school 4 

in New York City dropped by an astounding 5 

average of 26% in ELA, and 29% in math.  Now, 6 

during 2010/2011 school year, and with all the 7 

instability that this year brought to our school 8 

in terms of not having a permanent principal 9 

leading our school and with the documented facts 10 

that we did not have one ELA teacher and one 11 

math teacher until November of 2010, we were 12 

still able to move our students up in 13 

mathematics.   14 

[Applause]  15 

MR. IDRISS:  Now, we were still able to 16 

graduate a class of eighth graders who take the 17 

integrated algebra Regent's and had 100% passing 18 

for the fourth year in a row.  19 

[Applause]  20 

MR. IDRISS:  To say that we're not serving 21 

our students and that we're not moving our 22 

students and helping them get to the best high 23 

schools in the city is inaccurate, and we have 24 

the facts to prove it.  We have students that 25 
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graduated from Satellite Three during the last 1 

few years that are in some of the best high 2 

schools in the city, and we have them sitting 3 

right here with us.   4 

[Applause]  5 

MR. IDRISS:  We have students in Brooklyn 6 

Tech, Brooklyn Latin, Queens High School from 7 

the Sciences at York College, Bart College Prep, 8 

- - .   9 

[Applause]  10 

MR. IDRISS:  I cannot see how our graduates 11 

can get to these schools without great 12 

supporting systems from within our school, even 13 

with the limited support that our school was 14 

getting from the DOE.  As a teacher, I know that 15 

common sense tells me that if one of my students 16 

is not performing well in my class, I must do 17 

anything and everything to address this 18 

situation.  Forget common sense.  It's my 19 

obligation to address the issue.  It's my job to 20 

find out what best practices I can use in order 21 

to help my student, and if I don't do this, I 22 

fail not just as a teacher but as a member of 23 

this society.  I could not even live with myself 24 

knowing that I did not do anything to help this 25 
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student.  1 

It is one of the reasons why I became a 2 

teacher.  It is one of the reasons why we became 3 

teachers here at Satellite Three.  If we don't 4 

fulfill this part of our job, we fail, and if I 5 

don't fulfill that part of my job, I fail, and I 6 

miserably fail.  What is happening here is 7 

contrary to what we're asked to do with our 8 

students.  What is happening here is that we're 9 

not even given the chance to heal the wounds.  10 

Several educational officials made frequent 11 

visits to our school and saw the evidence of 12 

rigor in our classes.  They noticed that we are 13 

in the right track to having a successful school 14 

year and offered some helpful tips to continuing 15 

to raise the bar of expectations and how we will 16 

get out of this situation.  17 

Any time someone came to our school, they 18 

could tell that learning was taking place at a 19 

high level.  They could see that this is not a 20 

struggling school and that we are really going 21 

to be able to get through this with our current 22 

leadership.  When the terrible news came, we 23 

were all looking at each other as to why.  Why 24 

do you not want to give us a chance to turn 25 
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things around?  Why don't you want to see us 1 

succeed?  What happened to, you guys are doing a 2 

phenomenal job and this school should not be 3 

closing?  What happened to, we will offer you 4 

all the support that's here to help keep this 5 

school, one of the best middle schools in 6 

District 13?  I say that somebody dropped the 7 

ball.  8 

Somebody thought, let's just fix the problem 9 

by bringing another middle school with no theme 10 

or vision to the same floor.  How is this going 11 

to help our current students?  Why don't you 12 

say, instead, let's give this leadership a 13 

chance and support them to help this school, 14 

which is an integral part of the Clinton Hill 15 

community?  When the decision was made, it was 16 

not made by those visitors that kept coming to 17 

our school and praising our effort.  The 18 

decision was made by people that never set a 19 

foot on our floor.  People that are sitting 20 

behind closed doors, staring at a piece of paper 21 

that says these numbers don't look good.  22 

We would have loved for these people who 23 

made the decision to have visited our school and 24 

given us a fair chance.  We are not asking you 25 
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to sympathize with our situation, but to come 1 

and take a good look at what we're doing, and 2 

then make an informed decision, rather than 3 

judging the book by its cover.   4 

And just to add to this, we've never been on 5 

the state list, and even with the change of 6 

administration, we're still not on the state 7 

list, and we're not persistent.  To end this, I 8 

have to say this, and we always try to tell the 9 

teachers, make sure you bring real life 10 

situations, real life examples into your 11 

teaching, so I want to take a real life 12 

situation and compare it to what's happening 13 

right now.  Our president inherited a mess and 14 

promised to fix the problem.  But he also said 15 

that this will take him more than four years.  16 

He was saying this while he was running his 17 

presidential campaign.  Our president knew that 18 

the mess he was taking over could not be fixed 19 

in a matter of one or two years.  20 

We're not asking you to give us four years 21 

to turn things around, but a fair amount of time 22 

to show that without our principal's leadership 23 

skills, we will turn things around.  Our scores 24 

will be better, and Satellite Three will remain 25 
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the jewel of District 13 middle schools.  1 

Thank you.  2 

[Applause]  3 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Idriss.  I 4 

just want to let you know that the speaker sign 5 

up list is closed.  I apologize I didn't give 6 

you notice earlier, and also want to acknowledge 7 

that we've been joined by a representative by 8 

Huckey Jeffery's [phonetic] office, Mr. Church.   9 

[Applause]  10 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Our next presentation will be 11 

from Arlette Williams from the PS56 SLT.  12 

[Applause]  13 

MS. ARLETTE WILLIAMS:  Good evening, 14 

everyone.  As a representative of PS56 School 15 

Leadership Team and the PTA president, we 16 

support Satellite Three.  Positive changes have 17 

been apparent, but we feel Satellite Three needs 18 

time to improve it more.  This proposed closing 19 

seems to be already finalized, so I hope our 20 

words do not fall on deaf ears because it is 21 

very difficult to convince someone when their 22 

mind is made up.  23 

The collocation of MS351 will be a travesty 24 

in a building with an elementary school, 25 
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District 75 schools and the phasing out 1 

Satellite Three.  We have been working as a 2 

community with Satellite Three to create a 3 

campus feeling, and we feel we are on our way, 4 

so let's continue to work together to build and 5 

not destroy our community.  Thank you.  6 

[Applause]  7 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  We have a couple 8 

more presentations from the CEC.  Kim Gurby and 9 

David Goldsmith.  You can use that microphone in 10 

the center, if you'd like.  11 

MS. KIM GURBY:  Good evening, everybody.  I 12 

realize that tonight, this is very hard for us 13 

in this District, and I am extremely 14 

disappointed at the Department of Education and 15 

what they're trying to do to the black 16 

community.  This does not look good for the 17 

Department of Education.  I do believe that the 18 

fact that you actually hired a permanent 19 

principal to carry the torch, and then you turn 20 

around and say to that principal, no thank you, 21 

that sends the wrong message to our community.  22 

That sends a message of I'm not going to support 23 

you.  I don't know how you can allow a school to 24 

phase out and then give us a new school in which 25 
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I have been asking your department to let us 1 

look at that school.  We don't know the 2 

principal of that school.  We don't know these 3 

teachers that are coming in this school for 4 

District 13.  And that is another disrespect to 5 

our parents in this community, that you give us 6 

a mystery school.  How can we apply to a mystery 7 

school?  8 

There will be no open house for this school.  9 

We also asked you in District 13 that we would 10 

have an opportunity to design what we need for 11 

our children, and you blatantly continue to 12 

disrespect the parent leaders in this District 13 

who work very hard at trying to work with the 14 

Department of Education.  You said that this was 15 

going to be a discussion, so I have some 16 

questions for you.  17 

I want to know more about the better options 18 

that you're going to offer District 13.  I want 19 

to know more about the proposal that you asked 20 

Satellite Three to give you at the early 21 

intervention meeting.  You asked the teachers 22 

and the principal to present to you a turn 23 

around model of the things that they were going 24 

to do, and you never addressed that to the 25 
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community.  Why wasn't their turnaround model 1 

accepted?  What was wrong with what they are 2 

trying to do in order to turn the school around?  3 

That's what I would like to know from you 4 

tonight.   5 

How many years does it take for a school to 6 

fail before the Department of Education would 7 

truly give them support?  You gave us these 8 

networks, and honestly, we don't know those 9 

people.  We don't know what they've done as 10 

parents.  There's been no transparency as to the 11 

resources that you supposedly gave our school.  12 

All of this is under your auspices, and we want 13 

the Department of Education to take the blame on 14 

this.  Our teachers are not at fault here.  The 15 

principals are at fault because you gave us a 16 

principal that was obviously not qualified to 17 

pick up the torch after Mr. Reed, and then fail 18 

our community, and you don't want to own that, 19 

that you empowered the principal so much that 20 

he's not even here to account for what he did 21 

not do for Satellite Three.  But those of us 22 

that are here have to hear this message from 23 

you.  24 

The mayor is in control of our schools.  He 25 
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has failed our school.  We are not going to 1 

continue to be a part of this system any much 2 

longer.  There is going to be a change that is 3 

coming to this District, and I believe that the 4 

parents in District 13 are coming to - - .  I 5 

believe that the parents of District 13 are 6 

going to make a difference in this District, but 7 

we're asking that the Department of Education 8 

would truly, truly come back to this community 9 

and say, no phase out to this community.  That's 10 

what I'm asking for my school.  11 

And you come back and work with us and come 12 

to the table legitimately, and work with us to 13 

truly turn this around.  You always support your 14 

charter schools.  Charter schools get everything 15 

in this District.  One of your schools got an F 16 

rating, and you actually allowed that school to 17 

become a K through eight in this District.  They 18 

got an F.   19 

[Applause]  20 

MS. GURBY:  So it definitely sends a double 21 

message to my community.  And that's what I'm 22 

asking you to do.  I'm asking you actually to 23 

stop the hearing process.  I believe that you 24 

have the power right now, Ms. Grimm, to shut 25 
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this meeting down.  I believe that as a Deputy 1 

that you can decide right now to say to the 2 

Chancellor, we need to work another way with 3 

this school, that they have proven that they can 4 

turn this situation around, and you should 5 

advocate for Satellite Three.  That's what I'm 6 

charging you with tonight, that you should go 7 

back to the Chancellor and truly advocate for 8 

Satellite Three and the teachers in this 9 

building and for our community and the hard work 10 

that we're doing.  11 

We will boycott that new school.  We will 12 

tell parents not to enroll them in that new 13 

school as long as it remains a mystery school in 14 

our District.  So we will not enroll in the new 15 

school that we do not know anything about.  I 16 

will make sure that every fifth grade parent in 17 

this District will not apply to anything new 18 

that you bring into this District because so 19 

far, anything new that the Department of 20 

Education does, it fails in five years.  21 

Everything that you're doing new, it does not 22 

work.  It does not work.  23 

[Applause]  24 

MS. GURBY:  And finally, I have to say to 25 
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the parents of this District, we have more 1 

power than we think.  We need to go to the 2 

legislators.  We need to go to Albany, and we 3 

need to get a lawyer.  We need to get somebody 4 

in here because I believe that this is a 5 

violation of our civil rights.  Everybody in the 6 

Department of Education, all of the deputies, 7 

they don't look like my community.  They don't 8 

look like us.  They do not serve us.  They are 9 

not representative of the 95% of black and 10 

Latino families that is in the Department of 11 

Education.  12 

So I have a problem with a plantation model 13 

for a system called education.   14 

[Applause]  15 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Mr. Goldsmith? 16 

[Applause] 17 

MR. DAVID GOLDSMITH:  Go, Kim, go.  Very 18 

learned words.  Someone that's had a lot of 19 

experience seeing how the system works.  I'm a 20 

new representative on the CEC.  It's my first 21 

year, and it has been an education.  My first 22 

early engagement meeting was here at MS103, 23 

Satellite Three, and I was truly puzzled because 24 

I walked into a building, and I saw this new 25 
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principal who was very energetic, and I saw a 1 

really energized parent body and students that 2 

were proud of their school.  I saw a school 3 

community that was starving for leadership, and 4 

they were so happy to get leadership, and I was 5 

really puzzled.  I was like, maybe I'm naïve.  I 6 

said, wait a minute.  What's going on here?  7 

They have this great leader.  They have not 8 

had leadership, and that responsibility really 9 

goes to DOE for failing to provide that 10 

leadership.  They haven't had leadership in 11 

really tough times for the schools, and now they 12 

have this person who is really turning things 13 

around and doing everything that an effective 14 

leader should do, and they're going to close it?  15 

Either I'm thinking they don't know what they're 16 

doing, like maybe one hand doesn't know what--17 

what are they thinking?  Then I'm seeing the 18 

same process repeat itself at Kappa Seven.  They 19 

lack leadership and they bring in someone--they 20 

announce to us at a CEC the new principal.  21 

Finally we've got a leader.  And before the 22 

leader--she's got a couple of months and they 23 

decide to close it down.  24 

So what's going on?  Maybe you guys don't 25 
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know what you're doing, or maybe you do.   1 

[Applause]  2 

MR. GOLDSMITH:  I was also shocked, and I'm 3 

new to this.  I was like, I heard parents 4 

talking about how they still in October didn't 5 

have a math book for their children.  Then at 6 

the same time, I'm hearing about all this great 7 

support.  The DOE was--we're trying to help 8 

them, and I'm thinking, trying to help them with 9 

no math book?  It's bad enough they don't get a 10 

principal, but they don't get a math book?  I'm 11 

scratching my head.  I'm puzzled.   12 

Anyway, I think we all know what it takes to 13 

make a great school, and why not just continue 14 

the one good thing you guys have done in the 15 

last few years here, that by putting in a 16 

permanent principal that shows real leadership 17 

skills, why not just support her and her 18 

teaching staff and the students and the parents 19 

and build from that.  Musical chairs, it's time 20 

to stop experimenting with our children.  These 21 

are precious lives.  Precious lives that you 22 

guys, because you're in charge, have to take 23 

some responsibility for failing.  24 

The ones that have failed in this building 25 
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come from - - .  That's where the failure 1 

starts.  So let's all take some responsibility, 2 

and I think you guys should, too, and support 3 

the school that's here.  Let's stop playing, 4 

experimenting with the children, with this - - 5 

school.  6 

[Applause]  7 

MR. GOLDSMITH:  - - school.  We have them 8 

all over New York City.  Let's just do it.  9 

[Applause]  10 

MS. SOBELMAN:  So that concludes the formal 11 

presentations.  And before we open it up for 12 

public comment, I'm going to ask for Mendala 13 

Jones [phonetic] from Council Member Alvant's 14 

[phonetic] office to bring remarks for us.  15 

MR. MENDALA JONES:  Good evening.  My name's 16 

Mendala Jones.  I'm from Councilman Al Avant's 17 

office.  I'm going to read into the public 18 

record a letter that Council Member Alvant, 19 

Assemblyman - -  20 

FEMALE VOICE:  I can't hear.  21 

MR. JONES:  I'm going to read into the 22 

record a letter that Council Member Alvant, 23 

Assemblyman Joachim Jefferies [phonetic] and 24 

Senator - - Montgomery [phonetic] sent to the 25 
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Chancellor Venezuaca [phonetic]. 1 

We write to request that the Department of 2 

Education withdraw its proposal to phase out 3 

Satellite Three middle school.   4 

[Applause]  5 

MR. JONES:  Your proposal to phase out the 6 

school is premature and unwarranted, given the 7 

full history of the school's performance and 8 

decisions by the department that resulted in its 9 

recent problems, which are the basis for the 10 

proposal.  As you may know, Satellite Three was 11 

created to give low achieving students 12 

additional support and resources in a longer 13 

school day.  From its inception, it generally 14 

continued to improve its students achievement 15 

levels, giving it a reputation that attracted 16 

students of all abilities.  17 

Similar to most of the schools throughout 18 

New York City, it experienced drastic decreases 19 

in its proficiency levels for the 2009/2010 20 

school year when the state - - standards.  21 

However, it was not until April 2010 when the 22 

longtime principal left to become the founding 23 

principal of Eagle Academy Three and the 24 

Department failed to replace him with stable 25 
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leadership that the school truly suffered.  1 

The succeeding principal led the school from the 2 

beginning and nearly all of the last school year 3 

for which the school earned its lowest grade of 4 

D on the city's progress report, as the Deputy 5 

Chancellor stated.  Prior to this, the school 6 

had earned a B and a C in the year the - - 7 

proficiency standards.  Serving only in an 8 

interim acting capacity, this principal left in 9 

February of last year.  10 

According to parents and PTA members, he 11 

mismanaged the school, was unresponsive, 12 

discontinued popular advance programs for gifted 13 

and talented students and provided little 14 

support to teachers and staff, devastating 15 

morale.  It was not until his departure that the 16 

department made efforts to find a permanent 17 

principal and selected as current principal Ms. 18 

Beatrice Thompson.  19 

This is her first full year, and she has not 20 

only earned the confidence of the entire school 21 

community, but she and her leadership team are 22 

methodically guiding the school's improvement.  23 

Under its current leadership, the school 24 

maintains the ability to return to its path of 25 
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improving performance toward high academic 1 

achievement.  The new administration has 2 

demonstrated the ability to turn the school 3 

around, but must be given sufficient time.  4 

School improvement does not occur overnight, 5 

and school success is not inherently achieved 6 

through the opening of a new school.  Satellite 7 

Three has strong community support and parent 8 

leadership as you can see tonight with a history 9 

as a valuable institution within the Brooklyn 10 

community.  The Department's proposal represents 11 

a betrayal to the school and to the community 12 

since the Department is alone in not believing 13 

in the school's ability to turn around, despite 14 

culpability for the school's struggles.  15 

Although the Department has recently failed to 16 

provide adequate support from Satellite Three, 17 

has cut more than a quarter of a million dollars 18 

from its budget over the last three years, the 19 

school has already been considered proficient by 20 

the Department's quality reviews.  It also has 21 

not appeared on any New York State Education 22 

Department watch list for as many years as 23 

records are publically accessible.  24 

We again request the withdraw of your 25 
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current proposal for Satellite Three.  1 

[Applause]  2 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you - - .  Okay.  So 3 

now we're going to open up the public comment 4 

portion of the evening, and we have a pretty 5 

lengthy list.  So I'm going to ask folks and 6 

sort of remind ourselves and each other that 7 

we're going to try and keep it to two minutes.  8 

If the first five speakers would line up.  So if 9 

you have numbers one, two, three, four or five, 10 

line up in the center aisle there.  We'll start 11 

with I believe Loretta King.   12 

MS. LYNETTE KING:  Lynette.  13 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Lynette.  I apologize.  14 

MS. KING:  Can everybody hear me?  Is it 15 

loud enough?  Is that better?  Good evening 16 

committee.  Good evening parents.  Good evening 17 

students of MS103.  I thank you for allowing me 18 

to speak.  I came to this school because I am 19 

from the community.  My son started here in the 20 

sixth grade.  He is now in the seventh.  I came 21 

because of the reputation of Mr. Wells.  22 

Unbeknown to myself, when I came, he was no 23 

longer here.  No letters came out.  Then you 24 

have a strange man who never showed up the first 25 
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day of school, who never sent letters 1 

introducing himself as the new principal, who 2 

talked blatantly down to parents, to the 3 

teachers, to his administrative staff as well.  4 

When you - - the gentleman from PTA said it was 5 

a dip, it was not a dip.  This school flat 6 

lined.  It was a horror story being in here when 7 

Dr. Wells was in this school.  The cops and the 8 

ambulance were a regular in this school.  9 

When the current principal took over, you 10 

don't see police walking in here.  You don't see 11 

the ambulance in here.  I was a member of PTA.  12 

We were asking for money.  We was told there was 13 

no.  Everything was no, shut down, no, shut 14 

down, no, shut down.  She comes here, the kids 15 

get equipment, the staff gets equipment, 16 

electronics.  Where'd the money come from?  Why 17 

he holding it down?  Where were you when the 18 

parents were complaining?  I called 311 every, 19 

single day.  They couldn't call me by my first 20 

name.  21 

I called the District office on the regular.  22 

They know me by my first name.  Where were you?  23 

When he wasn't doing what he was supposed to do?  24 

The extra assistants and helpers not in the 25 
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school walking the halls.  You help when Ms. 1 

Thompson is here.  She's doing what she's 2 

supposed to do.  She is an excellent - - for 3 

this school.  Do not close this school.   4 

[Crosstalk] 5 

[Applause]  6 

MS. KING:  Put that money in this school and 7 

save the students of this school.  The teachers 8 

at one time were ready to walk out.  They're 9 

here to stay because they saw something 10 

different.  The parents stay, I stayed because I 11 

saw something different.  Give her a chance, and 12 

give the teachers a chance.  Thank you.  13 

[Applause]  14 

MS. SOBELMAN:  - - , thanks so much.  15 

MS. DESILVA:  My name is Ms. Desilva 16 

[phonetic].  I'm your children's ELA teacher.  17 

Many of my students past and present are sitting 18 

in this room right now.  I want to use Deputy 19 

Chancellor Grimm's word of persistence tonight, 20 

and I want to start out by saying Persistence 21 

means repetitive, over and over and over, and we 22 

were not persistent in failing our students.  We 23 

were persistent in getting Bs.  We were not 24 

persistent in getting Ds.  We have one D.  Can 25 
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we please be given the chance to be persistent 1 

in getting Bs and As?  Can we please get that 2 

chance to be persistent?  3 

I'm persistent when we come in this building 4 

every day.  Our staff is persistent when we come 5 

in this building every day to support the 6 

children that we love here, to support the 7 

parents that we love.  I'm persistent in giving 8 

these children a good education.  I have four 9 

children of my own.  I'm persistent in giving 10 

them a good education, and the same education I 11 

want them to get, I give my students every, 12 

single day.  Let me be persistent to do that, 13 

please.  14 

[Applause]  15 

MS. DESILVA:  Let me be persistent.  I get 16 

very passionate about my students.  I love my 17 

children, I do, and I am not going to let you 18 

tell me that I'm persistent in failing them 19 

because I know that in my heart and in my gut, I 20 

am not.  You need to know that about everyone in 21 

this building.  We are not persistent failures.  22 

Give us the chance, please, to be persistent 23 

excellors [phonetic].  That's all I'm going to 24 

say to you tonight.  Please remember my face, as 25 
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an educator in this system, these are my 1 

children.  Please, remember Ms. Desilva is 2 

asking you for the persistent chance to excel.  3 

Kathleen Grimm, I'm asking you this tonight. 4 

[Applause]  5 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Speaker three?  6 

MS. DEL SLED:  Good evening.  My name is Del 7 

Sled [phonetic], and I am one of the teachers at 8 

Satellite Three, part of the community here.  9 

Something that you're going to see over the next 10 

few minutes is very, very reflective of how we 11 

work together.  It is very, very reflective of 12 

what we believe in.  Actually, I have two 13 

minutes.  That was not satisfactory for our 14 

team, for our family, so as a result, we came 15 

down as a unified group, and two minutes will be 16 

added to my two minutes over and over and over 17 

again.  18 

[Applause]  19 

MS. SLED:  - - that our voices be heard, and 20 

it is important that you understand exactly what 21 

is happening here.  It is not just an issue of 22 

closing a door and opening a new door.  So my 23 

colleagues actually are standing with me, and 24 

we're standing as a family, as a community.  25 
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We're representing not just teachers.  We're 1 

representing the entire community.  We're 2 

representing 56, and we're also representing 3 

parents.  We're representing our children.  I'm 4 

a parent, but I am also a teacher.  What I would 5 

like to say today is that I've really been 6 

blessed with the chance to come into District 7 

13, 13 years ago when the doors first opened.  8 

I'm one of the original teachers, and when you 9 

look at everyone standing with me here, we bring 10 

to the table many, many years of experience and 11 

caring.   12 

Many of us did not end up here, working with 13 

children, by chance.  For many of us, it is by 14 

choice, and the one thing I want you to 15 

understand is that our children are watching.  16 

Our children are watching.  They're watching how 17 

we're handling situations.  They're watching how 18 

we're handling them.  They're watching our walk.  19 

They're watching our talk.  I often say to my 20 

students that in the journey, you might fall.  21 

That's a reality.  You might fall, and the most 22 

important thing is that you get up and you 23 

continue.  That's what we should be showing our 24 

children.  That's what we should be doing as 25 
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adults.  We should not be ripping up roots and 1 

chopping down trees.  We should not be telling 2 

our children game over.  That's not the message 3 

we should be sending.  Our children are 4 

watching.  5 

It is not time to eliminate Satellite Three.  6 

It isn't game over.  For us, we've been in this 7 

game for a very long time.  Some of us at other 8 

schools, and we all came to a crossroads at 9 

Satellite Three, and we've been working very, 10 

very hard.  I was very happy to hear Mr. Idriss 11 

with the data because I thought that maybe 12 

perhaps I got it wrong because what I heard was 13 

B, B, C, D.  I didn't hear D, D, D, F.  And I 14 

really, really believe that we need to look 15 

exactly at what we're doing.  I believe that 16 

Satellite Three is definitely a jewel in the 17 

community.  18 

We have students in the audience who have 19 

graduated, our alumni.  We have present 20 

students, and this is a family.  We have great 21 

hopes for our students.  We come in every day, 22 

we work hard, and you know what, we're going to 23 

have problems.  Families have problems.  That's 24 

not a secret.  Families have problems, but what 25 
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we want for our children to know, that in 1 

spite of any problems you may encounter in life, 2 

what's very, very important is that you push 3 

past those problems.  4 

We're asking that you allow Satellite Three 5 

to push past a bad year, and I'm proud to say a 6 

bad year.  Not many bad years.  A bad year.  It 7 

is not secret that in everyone's journey, you're 8 

going to have a valley experience.  You know 9 

what, we had a valley experience.  It happens.  10 

That is not who we are by no means.  It is not 11 

who we are.  12 

[Applause]  13 

MS. SLED:  If you should close our doors, it 14 

doesn't erase our history.  The saddest thing to 15 

me is that our alumni, our kids who we graduated 16 

have nowhere to come back and say, hey, this is 17 

where I started or where I came from.  Another 18 

sad point is that you are basically telling 19 

children that, you know what, there's no hope, 20 

and that's not the message that we send as 21 

teachers every day.  That's not the message that 22 

we want to send to our community because when 23 

you're hopeless, you'll do anything.  When 24 

you're hopeless, game is over.  But we're not 25 
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hopeless.  We're just beginning to do even 1 

better.  We have solid leadership.  We have 2 

solid leadership, and we're ready to move 3 

forward.  Teachers come in every, single day, 4 

ready to work with your children, and you know 5 

what, you're not perfect.  We're not perfect, 6 

but the one thing we do know is that we're here 7 

to move our children forward.  Give us a chance.  8 

Give us a chance to continue a job well done.  9 

Give us a chance to continue to make a 10 

difference in the community.  11 

Give us a chance to work with our new 12 

administration, which we are very, very happy to 13 

work with.  I was speaking to someone during 14 

lunch, and I said, elimination is not an option.  15 

I want you to think about who you are, the 16 

adults in the audience, who you are, who you've 17 

become, and I'm more than sure there was one 18 

point in your personal journey that you weren't 19 

too sure or that you stumbled.  So the last 20 

thing I'm going to say is that stumbling, that's 21 

part of the journey.  That's a reality, but one 22 

thing's for sure, that as a community, as a 23 

family, we're here to stay.  We're here to work 24 

together, and it would be a great injustice to 25 
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rob a school individual or anyone of an 1 

opportunity.   2 

I can't tell the future, and I'm sure you 3 

can't tell the future, but at least let us have 4 

the future.  Thank you.  5 

[Applause]  6 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much.  So I'm 7 

not 100% sure how many of the folks on the list 8 

here were included in that time.  Summer - - 9 

Cosgrove?  Maxine Matthews, Carol Bonham--okay.  10 

So we're going to go to 12.  Thank you, whoever 11 

helped me out there.  So speakers 13, 14, 15, 16 12 

and 17, if you would join us at the mic, and 13 

please do introduce yourself.  Thank you.  14 

MR. STEVE ROSEN:  Good evening.  My name is 15 

Steve Rosen [phonetic], and I am from--one of 16 

the directors from the council.   17 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Speak directly into the 18 

microphone, and then it'll pick up your voice.  19 

MR. ROSEN:  Okay.  My name is Steve Rosen, 20 

and I'm the Director for the Council of School 21 

Supervisors and Administrators, and I'd like to 22 

read a statement in support of keeping Satellite 23 

Three open.  The Department of Education has 24 

scheduled 25 more schools for a phase out and 25 
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closure, and said that the new schools opened 1 

under Mayor Bloomberg are better than those they 2 

replaced.  Yet in the latest round of closings, 3 

11 schools were opened during this mayor's 4 

administration.  Ironically, some of the mayor's 5 

new schools are usually among those that are 6 

closed and become part of the vicious cycle of 7 

failure.  The New York City public school system 8 

is not a place for experimentation while we open 9 

and close schools for students who have already 10 

been traumatized by previous school closings.   11 

Then there is the tragedy of all the young 12 

people who have not been saved even briefly by 13 

the city's new school safety net, but who have 14 

been turned away from new schools for reasons of 15 

poor academic achievement or other reasons, and 16 

sent to be warehoused in other low performing 17 

schools that will probably be closed, too.  This 18 

is a losing strategy for turning around low 19 

performing schools, which are invariably 20 

attended by children of color from economically 21 

disadvantaged communities.   22 

The end game of the strategy is to eliminate 23 

schools that the administration has had at least 24 

a decade to fix and to improve.  The fact is 25 
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that closure is an admission of failure by the 1 

city and the mayor.  The Bloomberg 2 

Administration needs to take more 3 

responsibility, not less, for schools that are 4 

not doing well rather than turning them over to 5 

private entities, EPOs or closing them and 6 

washing their hands of the deep rooted problem 7 

that it has been unsuccessful in remedying.  8 

Thank you.  9 

[Applause]  10 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, sir.  Speaker 11 

number 14.  12 

[Applause]  13 

MS. SOBELMAN:  And please do just introduce 14 

yourself when you start.  15 

MS. ALEXIS PASCAL:  My name is Alexis 16 

Pascal.  I'm a former eighth grader--I mean 17 

present, sorry.  I'm nervous.  But I feel that 18 

this is not the right choice.  I came in here as 19 

a low performing student.  I had teachers that 20 

work hard with me.  I'm still going to rock out, 21 

but I just think it's not the right thing to do.  22 

Satellite Three's done a lot of things for me.  23 

Sixth grade was a good year with Mr. Reed.  When 24 

Dr. Wells came in, everything went downhill.  25 
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This year, not that good.  I heard that my 1 

school was closing.  It made me feel sad, but 2 

it's not the right thing to do.  3 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  4 

VICTORIA:  I'm Victoria, and I'm an eighth 5 

grader here at Satellite Three.  I came into the 6 

school three years ago, or going on three years 7 

ago.  I had problems with self esteem and my 8 

confidence.  I - - to make friends before I came 9 

here.  I wasn't confident in my school work.  10 

Being here has done a lot.  A lot of positive 11 

things for me as well as the negative, but you 12 

can't always look at the negative.  You know, 13 

you have to look ahead and look at the positive, 14 

right?  So bright future, dark past.  That's how 15 

it's supposed to be.  We're not a school that's 16 

always done bad.  Things did go downhill, but 17 

honestly, I do feel that we can pull ourselves 18 

up, how everything was when I first came into 19 

the school.  20 

Here we have a young woman leadership 21 

program.  We just had an event on Monday, which 22 

was very successful.  Being here's done lots for 23 

me.  If I hadn't heard from my principals that 24 

the school was being phased out, I wouldn't 25 
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believe it.  It's the point you guys can't 1 

even close the school.  That's it.   2 

[Applause]  3 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Speaker number 16.  4 

RUBY:  Good evening.  You know, it's not 5 

over until it's over, so you need to keep your 6 

spirits up, you know?  Don't die out on the 7 

school before it goes.  Only God knows where 8 

that's going.  We know that until He speaks, 9 

nothing is - - .  10 

My name is Ruby - - , and I'm one of the 11 

people who made Satellite Three what it is.  I 12 

will not say what it was because as has been 13 

said, we all have our down times.  And so 14 

therefore, it is, and it can be again.  I was 15 

here when this school was a well kept secret 16 

because so much was happening.  Children were 17 

thriving.  There were children who came in here 18 

who were two grades behind and left here a grade 19 

ahead of themselves, simply because this school 20 

had structure.  It had support, and with that 21 

same type of support and structure, it will be 22 

what it was before.  23 

It can be what you want it to be.  There are 24 

teachers here who were in here when I was here, 25 
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and they made it work and they can make it 1 

work again.  Get rid of those words like phase 2 

out and replacement.  Use fix and improve.  Some 3 

of the things you say you're going to do for the 4 

new school are the things that we did to make it 5 

a success.   6 

[Applause]  7 

RUBY:  All you have to do is bring that 8 

here.  I don't have the time to preach the 9 

sermon that I would love to preach today, but 10 

what I am going to leave you with is this.  If 11 

you don't work to keep this school here, the 12 

community will be at - - .  Leave it.  Don't 13 

touch it.  Fix it.  14 

[Applause]  15 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much.  Speaker 16 

number 17.  I'll let you pronounce that.  I 17 

apologize.  Then if you could just--are you 17 18 

and 18, Danielle Barnes and Sharee Noel 19 

[phonetic]?  Great, thank you ladies.  20 

FEMALE VOICE:  Good afternoon, ladies and 21 

gentlemen.  My name is - - .  I have been 22 

attending Satellite Three for two years, and 23 

this is my third year.  I am now a senior, and 24 

I'm enjoying my senior year.  I learned a lot 25 
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from this school, and I think it shouldn't be 1 

shut down.  One day, I want to come back to 2 

Satellite Three and see a new effort.  I also 3 

have memories about this year are those sad 4 

memories, too.  The one memory I remember is 5 

when Ms. Desilva pushed us to work hard, told us 6 

if you believe in yourself, you can achieve 7 

great things, and never give up on yourself.   8 

[Applause]  9 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  10 

MS. DANIELLE BARNES:  My name is Danielle 11 

Barnes.  I'm an eighth grader.  It's sad to be 12 

here, listen to people talk about what's wrong 13 

with the school because I've been here for two 14 

years - - .  And during the second year, it was 15 

horrible.  When Dr. Wells walked into this 16 

school, it went downhill.  Then when my great 17 

principal, Ms. Thompson, walked in, the sunshine 18 

walked in with her.  I remember when Ms. Wright 19 

[phonetic] told me the right direction to begin, 20 

and now I'm here now in eighth grade.  I just 21 

want to thank Ms. Wright, Ms. Thompson and my 22 

mother because without them, I wouldn't be here 23 

speaking about my - - .  24 

[Applause]  25 
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MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.   1 

MS. SHAREE NOEL:  My name is Sharee Noel.  I 2 

have been in Satellite Three - - I learned so 3 

many things that I never learned before.  This 4 

school helped me become a better person.  I 5 

remember the first time I came to the United 6 

States, I didn't know anything at all.  But when 7 

I came to this school, they taught me a lot of 8 

things.  If it was my first school, my grade 9 

would not be so good.  I got threes and 10 

sometimes fours for class.  I think that the 11 

idea of closing the school is a bad idea because 12 

I want to come back to see the memories that I 13 

had at this school.  I also want other kids to 14 

come to this school and have memories like I 15 

did.  The one memory I remember was the week 16 

before we had to take a test.  Everyone was 17 

doubting themselves.  Ms. Desilva told us to 18 

have faith in ourselves, and we can do it.  19 

Please don't close my school.  We need it, and 20 

everybody - - .  21 

[Applause]  22 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  So I'm going to 23 

call up the next set of speakers.  We have Damon 24 

Dewah [phonetic], Monique Small [phonetic], 25 
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Brian Deberry [phonetic], Morgan Deberry, 1 

Taylor Deberry and Pria Deberry, oh, and Shawn 2 

Deberry. 3 

[Applause] 4 

MS. SOBELMAN:  You can just please - - 5 

yourself and feel free to start.  6 

MR. DOMINIC BOWES:  Good evening.  My name 7 

is Dominic Bowes [phonetic], and I'm in sixth 8 

grade.  I think you should save our school 9 

because the kids love it here.  We may be 10 

different and real good at math or - - .  The 11 

teachers care about us here.  They care about 12 

how the - - got and education.  The kids love 13 

being here and learning and different things, so 14 

please don't shut my school down.  Thank you.  15 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Number 22, 16 

Monique Small.  17 

MS. MONIQUE SMALL:  Hi, good evening 18 

everyone.  My name is Monique Small, and I am 19 

the recording secretary of the PTA.  I'm also 20 

the proud parent of a set of twins who attend 21 

Satellite Three, who are also eighth graders 22 

here at the school.  This is really difficult.  23 

It really is.  This is not an easy thing to do.  24 

I'm here to speak on behalf of the PTA.  But I 25 
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think you guys need to know that Satellite 1 

Three is not just a school.  It's not.  2 

Satellite Three is not just a school.  If you 3 

look at the inception, Satellite Three was 4 

designed as an after school program to service 5 

low level readers and low level math performers, 6 

so therefore there's a sense of community, and 7 

that's exactly what Satellite Three is.  It's 8 

not just a school.  It's not just a place that 9 

can be phased out and closed.  You cannot close 10 

down a family.  You cannot close down a home.  11 

This is a home for a lot of our students.  We 12 

have seen students that have lost parents, that 13 

have lost siblings, that have lost grandparents.  14 

We have seen them through these difficult times 15 

as a family, as a unit.  When they needed 16 

support, they came here.  17 

There was one young lady who lost her mother 18 

one night, and the next day she was here, on 19 

time, in school, ready to learn.  You can't 20 

close a place down like this.   21 

Let me talk about my twins.  I can speak to 22 

them the best.  My twins experienced the loss of 23 

three grandparents during their time here, and 24 

they told me, had they not been able to come 25 
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here to this building, to these teachers, to 1 

these fellow students, they would not have been 2 

able to get through this.  I also have a 3 

colleague, a friend of mine, who was in the 4 

hospital, and her daughter actually wanted to 5 

come to school while her mother was in the 6 

hospital because this is not just a school.  7 

It's a community.  8 

We are a family.  You cannot close a family.  9 

[Applause]  10 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much.  - - .  11 

MR. BRIAN DEBERRY:  My children are just 12 

want to use their allotted time to play two 13 

quick selections, just to show you what a real 14 

commitment from the DOE and funding can do for 15 

the children of Brooklyn.  16 

FEMALE VOICE:  Good evening, everyone.  My 17 

brothers and I are former students of Satellite 18 

Three, and we're going to play two selections 19 

for you.  The first one will be Spring by 20 

Vivaldi, and the second will be The Entertainer 21 

by - - .   22 

[Applause]  23 

[Children playing violins] 24 

[Applause] 25 
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[Children playing violins] 1 

[Applause] 2 

MR. DEBERRY:  As you can see, - - is 3 

impressed.  They're Satellite Three students.  4 

The last one, I didn't - - , she's in the sixth 5 

grade at a sister MS school, 113, and I had some 6 

concerns last year, too.  That's why I didn't 7 

send her here.   8 

They also have an older sister.  She's in 9 

her first year of college in Albany, doing quite 10 

well, and I owe most of that to Satellite Three.  11 

I wanted to come and yell at the bureaucrats to 12 

really hear what I have to say and what's been 13 

on my mind when I heard that they were closing 14 

the school, too.  But I'd rather talk to you 15 

all.  16 

Demand more from your children.  Take 17 

cellphones, cut the TV off, study, study and 18 

study.  I tell my kids every day, if you're only 19 

doing homework, you're not doing enough.  20 

Parents, you have to demand incessantly.  - - a 21 

real life experience.  I watch the Dog 22 

Whisperer, Cesar Milan.  He says with an animal, 23 

to get the behavior you desire from that animal, 24 

you have to stay on it.  Every moment it doesn't 25 
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do what you don't want it to do, you correct 1 

it.  You correct it again and correct it again.  2 

Parents, correct your children.  If I come up 3 

here and yell at the bureaucrats, I imply to my 4 

children that their destiny is in their hands, 5 

that they don't control their own fate.  Tell 6 

your children their destiny is in their hands.  7 

Their fate is their own to control.  You help 8 

them.  They will facilitate it.  Every day.  9 

Every moment, don't give up on your kids.  10 

My kids, some days - - .  Cellphones are 11 

collected when they walk in the door unless they 12 

need to call a classmate.  Parents, raise your 13 

children, and - - .  No matter what school they 14 

put here, you're still going to be in a low 15 

income neighborhood.  We're not going to get no 16 

more money.  They - - .  Dr. Wells was a 17 

disaster.  A disaster.  And as far as Mr. Reed, 18 

I don't call him an administrator.  I call him 19 

brother.  20 

[Applause]  21 

MR. DEBERRY:  - - Mr. Idriss, Mr. Nicholson, 22 

these staff, I call family.  Stay on your 23 

children.  They facilitate them, but you're 24 

raising them.  - - .  25 
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[Applause]  1 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, sir.  And thank 2 

you for the musical interlude as well.  I'm 3 

going to call up the next group of speakers.  4 

Janelle Baylor [phonetic], Kanzi Asang 5 

[phonetic], Ronin Albert [phonetic], Tenomi 6 

Fowler [phonetic], Joan Thompson and Denise 7 

Souvenir [phonetic].  And apologies if I 8 

misprounounced those.  Janelle Baylor?  Is 9 

Janelle Baylor making their way to the 10 

microphone?  No?  Are you Janelle?  11 

Please just introduce yourself and go ahead 12 

and get started.  13 

MS. DENISE SOUVENIR:  Hi, my name is Denise, 14 

and I was Satellite Three's Valedictorian last 15 

year.  16 

MS. JANELLE BAYLOR:  And I'm Janelle, and 17 

I'm - - .  These positions of - - Satellite 18 

Three has helped us a lot in succeeding to be 19 

the best we can be.  20 

MS. SOUVENIR:  Even though the students 21 

complain today, they will one day be glad that 22 

they got their education through Satellite 23 

Three.  The teachers work hard to teach us what 24 

they know.  For example, Mr. Nicholson, he 25 
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talked about all the different wars in 1 

American History, and that's helping us today in 2 

high school global history.  And with teachers 3 

like Ms. Desilva and Ms. McAllister [phonetic], 4 

helped us in getting into AP English today.  5 

Some of us got the chance to work with Coach Gi 6 

[phonetic] who gave us a chance to look at 7 

schools focusing - - , and three years of 8 

algebra with Ms. Averies [phonetic] paid off 9 

when we found out that we scored higher than our 10 

normal grade level.  11 

MS. BAYLOR:  A lot of schools - - New York.  12 

- - I mean, Brooklyn Collegiate Academy, - - 13 

schools and many more.  - - we had the grades to 14 

get accepted, grades that reflected on the type 15 

of education that we had here at Satellite 16 

Three.   17 

MS. SOUVENIR:  This school may be flawed, 18 

but not with - - , so the school is being shut 19 

down on what grounds?  Because they claim that 20 

the education that we receive here is not top 21 

notch?  Then why is it that students from the 22 

past years, students that live far and near came 23 

back here for this meeting?  Because they know 24 

and they believe that this is a place of 25 
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opportunity, and I hope you all take that into 1 

consideration.  Thank you.  2 

[Applause]  3 

MALE VOICE:  Hello.  I was a student here at 4 

Satellite Three.  I graduated almost--it's 5 

almost three years ago now.  I was here when Mr. 6 

Reed was still principal.  The only thing I can 7 

remember is that when we graduated, we graduated 8 

with flying colors, and we all got into the 9 

schools we wanted to get into.  The school was 10 

always supportive.  I can't honestly remember a 11 

time when a school didn't help any of the 12 

students that were in need.   13 

Satellite Three helped me get into Frank 14 

Sinatra High School of the Arts, a specialized 15 

high school.   16 

[Applause]  17 

MALE VOICE:  - - I got there because the 18 

school taught me what I needed to know.  So - -19 

 .  20 

[Applause]  21 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Speaker - -, 22 

Tenomi Fowler?  23 

MS. TENOMI FOWLER:  Hi, my name is Tenomi 24 

Fowler.  Satellite Three is a school - - .  25 
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Closing down Satellite Three or any other 1 

school in the area would be the worst decision 2 

you could ever do for this community.  This 3 

school deserves a second chance.  I am a senior 4 

here in Satellite Three.  When I came here in 5 

sixth grade, Mr. Reed was the principal.   6 

After he left, it took a turn.  It took a 7 

turn on all of us.  A lot of the teachers went 8 

with him, so we went through a frequent process.  9 

Satellite Three has been like my second home - -10 

 .  I love this school, and would not like to 11 

see it closed down.  The teachers help me a lot 12 

with all my problems.  If Satellite Three 13 

closes, I won't have no home to live in - - .  14 

I hope - - .  15 

[Applause]  16 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  17 

MS. SHARI SUMIR:  Good night.  My name is 18 

Shari Sumir [phonetic], and I was class of 2010.  19 

No, I was not a straight A student, but from 20 

start to end, I learned a whole lot.  21 

Satellite Three has - - in which it helped 22 

me build confidence in which I'm using now to 23 

become a nurse at - - .  Thank you.  24 

[Applause]  25 
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MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  - - new 1 

speakers.  Cordelle Sinclair [phonetic], Luis 2 

Gonzales [phonetic], Lisa North [phonetic], 3 

Tamika Bailey [phonetic], Shiquana Hall 4 

[phonetic].  So Cordelle Sinclair?  Okay.  Luis 5 

Gonzales?   6 

MR. TERIQUE JOHNSON:  Hello, my name is 7 

Terique Johnson [phonetic], and I would like to 8 

say, I've been here since 6th grade, and in that 9 

sixth grade year, I came in - - .  A lot of the 10 

teachers now are motivating me to do what I do.  11 

With Mr. Reed being principal and all the staff, 12 

they'd begun the process of me becoming an 13 

educated young man.  Then during that seventh 14 

grade year, I hated education because the school 15 

- - didn't take education seriously, so that 16 

made me think what's up with this principal?  17 

Why is he not doing his job?   18 

Then in eighth grade, with our new 19 

principal, Ms. Thompson, she's teaching us to 20 

not give up, and that I'm going to be coming to 21 

go on the right track.  I'm - - and all my other 22 

teachers because they are leading me on the 23 

right path.  So my question is why are you doing 24 

this to us?  Why are you going to take this 25 
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away?  The future youth, they need to learn 1 

what I'm learning.  They're probably going to 2 

learn more than what I'm learning.  I have the 3 

idea that with this principal, Ms. Thompson, the 4 

seventh grade, the sixth grade, they're going to 5 

achieve a lot in life.  The future classes are 6 

going to achieve a lot in life, and we're going 7 

to make it somewhere.  But please just give us 8 

another chance.  Thank you.  9 

[Applause]  10 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Please introduce yourself.  11 

MR. LUIS GONZALES:  My name is Luis 12 

Gonzalez.  I'm a scholar at Satellite Three.  I 13 

have been attending Satellite Three for two 14 

years, and this is my third year.  For the two 15 

years that I have been here, I noticed that 16 

Satellite Three has been going through tough 17 

times.  I would like for the parents and 18 

teachers help us save our school from phasing 19 

out.  Mayor Bloomberg is bullying us out of a 20 

truly irreplaceable education here at Satellite 21 

Three.  Instead of phasing out and replacing the 22 

schools, put more resources in our schools and 23 

our children.  24 

Is this what our children have to look 25 
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forward to?  Please join me and other 1 

students, - - parents, elected officials and 2 

community members and stop our mayor from 3 

bullying students out of a public education.  4 

[Applause]  5 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Speaker number 6 

29, Lisa North.  7 

MS. LISA NORTH:  Hi, my name is Lisa North.  8 

I want to talk to everybody, but I'm a teacher 9 

at PS3, which is the neighborhood school, and a 10 

lot of our students come here.  I really want to 11 

vote to speak in favor of keeping Satellite 12 

Three open.  I know it's a community school, and 13 

I think that's one thing that Department of 14 

Education really fails in.  They don't realize 15 

that part of education is also community and 16 

learning to be part of a community and being in 17 

a community.  Unfortunately this process that 18 

the Department of Education has of not 19 

supporting schools, and here you have a school 20 

that's really been a successful school until the 21 

last year, basically.  Why not support that 22 

school?  Why not give us the resources that we 23 

need in our public schools?  It just makes 24 

absolutely no sense.  25 
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What's going on, though, I think we really 1 

have to realize what's going on is the mayor and 2 

unfortunately large parts of the Department of 3 

Education think that the way to improve 4 

education is do the business model.  We see that 5 

the business model has not really worked so 6 

great with our economy, when you think about 7 

healthcare.  Is that providing us all with the 8 

kind of healthcare that we need, the business 9 

model?  Now they want to impose it on our public 10 

education system.   11 

Our public education system is made up of 12 

people and children.  It's not made up of 13 

products that you can buy and sell and move 14 

around as a business model.  We're part of a 15 

community.  You need to fix our local public 16 

schools, give us the resources that we need for 17 

our community, and what you're doing is just not 18 

improving our public education system.  19 

[Applause]  20 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Tamika Bailey. 21 

MS. TAMIKA BAILEY:  Good evening, everyone.  22 

I just have a couple of quick things to say.  My 23 

daughter asked me - - to PS56, so I've seen this 24 

transformation from when Mr. Reed was here, and 25 
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from the difference in between that and when 1 

Ms. Thompson is here.  Somewhere in between 2 

that, I have not seen anyone stand outside and 3 

talk to any of the youth.  With Mr. Reed, Mr. 4 

Reed used to stand outside, and Ms. Thompson 5 

stands outside, and it's like they're principals 6 

and counselors at the same time.  And they're 7 

the guidance counselor.  Everyone works with the 8 

community, so for Satellite Three to just shut 9 

down in this fashion in one year is a bit 10 

disrespectful.  11 

As far as that, when you have thousands and 12 

thousands of kids being born and transforming 13 

onto other grades, where do they go?  If you 14 

keep closing down schools, where would they go 15 

over a grade if you don't view how they're 16 

doing, if you don't come in and see how 17 

everything is formulating?  It's unfair just to 18 

say we're going to close down a school over one 19 

year.  It's unfair, and that's pretty much what 20 

I have to say.  21 

[Applause]  22 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Next speaker is Shiquana 23 

Hall.  24 

MS. SHIQUANA HALL:  First off, I have to say 25 
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thank you for letting me be here.  You know, 1 

reunited with my Satellite Three family and most 2 

of my friends.  I see one of my friends here.  3 

My teachers, my favorite teachers.  For the 4 

students that attend Satellite Three, you guys 5 

may not know me, but I am Ms. McGill's daughter, 6 

and my mom don't play when it comes to the 7 

school.  8 

Now, I know the staff know my mom.  You know 9 

my mom.  I know you all do.  I know you all do.  10 

I just have to say that I am disappointed to 11 

even hear that this school is even shutting down 12 

because ever since I was in third grade, the 13 

first time I attended PS56 from transferring 14 

from PS13 where I was at in east New York, I 15 

have to say PS56 changed me.  Then going in 16 

Satellite Three, that changed me a lot because 17 

that told me that I made it.  That told me that 18 

this staff, they didn't give up on me.  They 19 

told me that I had confidence.  They told me 20 

that I can do anything.  I was - - graduation, 21 

and I made a lot of friends here at this school.  22 

I made friends not just with the other students, 23 

I also interacted with the teachers.  Teachers 24 

can be open minded.  They can be open to new 25 
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ideas.  This school had a lot to offer to most 1 

of the students.  I'm not even a math person.  I 2 

made best friends with the math teacher.  3 

This school is my home.  This is all I know 4 

is Satellite Three.  This can't happen.  5 

Satellite Three cannot be closed down because 6 

this is not only a community, but it's also a 7 

village, and it takes a community to raise a 8 

village.  So that's what Satellite Three is to 9 

me.  And you staff are doing an excellent job.  10 

Do not let this principal or who they got that 11 

could take over Satellite Three, please do not 12 

let them.  Don't.  Don't let this principal 13 

think that just because what he did, that this 14 

school is going to close down.  15 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much.  16 

[Applause]  17 

MS. SOBELMAN:  The next speaker is Mr. Reed.  18 

Mr. Reed will be talking about - - .  19 

[Applause] 20 

MR. REED:  Thank you.   21 

[Applause]  22 

MR. REED:  I didn't really plan on coming to 23 

talk tonight.  I really was just coming to 24 

support my family here at Satellite Three.  I 25 
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really don't have too much planned.  I 1 

listened a lot to what was being said.  I heard 2 

the wonderful words said by Mr. Idriss.  I guess 3 

as an employee of the DOE, I know of certain 4 

metrics that are used when you want to identify 5 

if a school's going to close.  What has baffled 6 

me was exactly what are the metrics that have 7 

been used to identify Satellite Three as a 8 

school that is failing because I've looked 9 

through the data.  I taught mathematics, I'm 10 

pretty good at it, and it doesn't add up.  11 

Satellite Three has consistently met the 12 

needs of our children.  We've met our state 13 

requirements, and yes, we've been through some 14 

ups and downs because of things that are beyond 15 

our children's control, but it seems unfortunate 16 

now that they're being punished.  It's the 17 

children who are being punished because the 18 

school, yes, is measured some degree by our 19 

performance academically, but really what 20 

measures a good school are the young people and 21 

the seed that you sowed.   22 

We can see what has grown.  What has grown 23 

is a family, and that's what middle school 24 

students really and truly need during that time 25 
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of adolescence, when they're trying to figure 1 

out who they are and what they want to be.  They 2 

need a family who's going to be there, that's 3 

going to pick them up and let them know that we 4 

believe in you, we're not going to let you fail.  5 

That's what Satellite Three has consistently 6 

done for the community.  That's why you see this 7 

outpouring of love.  So I'm kind of baffled by 8 

what are the metrics that are used to identify 9 

Satellite Three as a failing school because I 10 

look at these faces, I look at the community, 11 

and none of them are failing.  None of them are 12 

failing.  I could not be more proud of the seeds 13 

that we've sown and what I see growing in you 14 

every day.  I see right here what's brought you 15 

back.  16 

So I say to all our Satellite Three family, 17 

continue to come out, continue to fight, and 18 

make sure your voices are heard.  Make sure they 19 

know that they have to follow the system that 20 

they've created.  There's a system that they 21 

created, and they're not following it.  You have 22 

to follow the rules.  That's what we tell our 23 

children every day.  Follow the rules.  24 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, sir.  25 
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MR. REED:  So what we're saying to you is 1 

follow your rules.  2 

[Applause]  3 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you so much.  The next 4 

group of speakers will be called up.  Xavier 5 

Evans [phonetic], Rebecca Stevens, N. Odessia 6 

[phonetic], Patricia Graham and Patricia Jones.  7 

Mr. Evans?  8 

MR. XAVIER EVANS:  My name is Xavier Evans.  9 

It's my first year at Satellite Three.  I don't 10 

think you should close it because like they were 11 

saying, we're a family, and we - - and we put 12 

more effort in what we're doing.  When I first 13 

came in here, my grade level was 3.4.  Now - - 14 

my real level is 5.5.  I - - if you take this 15 

away from me, I don't know where I'll go.  16 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Evans.  17 

Rebecca Stevens?   18 

MS. PATRICIA JONES:  I don't see nobody 19 

standing here, so I'll say what I have to say 20 

briefly.  21 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Hold on just one moment.  Are 22 

you Rebecca Stevens? 23 

MS. JONES:  No, my name's Patricia Jones.  24 

I'm a first year parent here, and I feel like a 25 
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recording, but I thought the Deputy should 1 

hear what I'm saying.  Again, my son's a first 2 

year student here, and I want to speak on him.  3 

I'm not here to point fingers or play the blame 4 

game, but I thought the Deputy should know that 5 

my son has come a long way in a few months, and 6 

I owe that to Satellite Three, to Ms. Thompson, 7 

to the staff.  I said it before, I've had the 8 

opportunity to talk to the teachers.  The 9 

teachers work with you here, and again, in a 10 

short period of time, I have know - - , you 11 

know?  Are we there yet?  No, anyone who knows 12 

my son knows that we're not there yet, but 13 

again, I see improvement.  I see growth, and I 14 

owe it to you all here.  I say, give our 15 

principal, Ms. Thompson, a chance.  16 

Ms. Thompson, God answered prayers.  Thank 17 

you.  18 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Rebecca Stevens?  19 

Patricia Graham?  20 

MS. PATRICIA GRAHAM:  Good evening, 21 

everybody.  Thank you.  As you know, my name is 22 

Patricia Graham.  I have a son, Elijah Graham, 23 

in Satellite Three.  He came--can you hear me?  24 

He came in Satellite Three in sixth grade.  I 25 
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was discouraged when I first came here because 1 

it was lack of communication from the principal 2 

that was here.  Mr. Reed had left, and I was 3 

ready to take my child out of Satellite Three 4 

when a breath of fresh air came in the school, 5 

Ms. Thompson.  She said, mommy, don't worry, 6 

everything's going to be all right.  Ms. Cannon 7 

[phonetic], one of the teachers, one of many 8 

that stayed on my child, made sure he's kept 9 

that straight line.  Elijah is a very good 10 

child.  I have no problem with him, thank God, 11 

and he stayed straight in Satellite Three.  12 

I'm standing up here to let you know you 13 

take it back to the mayor, your boss, whoever.  14 

You let them know this parent, my name--remember 15 

this.  Patricia Graham.  When you decide to 16 

close the doors of Satellite Three, I'm talking 17 

to you from my heard.  I don't have no paper in 18 

front of me to read.  But when you close the 19 

door of Satellite Three, I'm going to be one of 20 

the parents, and all the teachers and everybody 21 

in this school can tell you, I can cook.  I'm 22 

going to be out there everyday with my car 23 

generator, and I have a couple, serving up hot 24 

plates for all the parents, all the friends and 25 
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family of this community, serving up 1 

breakfast, dinner and lunch to protest any 2 

school you put in this school.  3 

You see, on Martin Luther King's birthday, 4 

the day when we're supposed to have been 5 

celebrating his day, I stood out there in the 6 

cold with all the children and parents to stop 7 

the closing, to get petition.  Don't worry, I'll 8 

be finished in a few minutes.  Lower that sign.  9 

To get petitions.  You see this?  This is just 10 

some of what I stood up in 19 degree weather to 11 

stop this school from closing.  12 

You see all of these parents here, that 13 

signed, not a child's name on this.  For all 14 

these parents, they will come out and protest 15 

any school you put right here.  I'm telling you 16 

if you decide to close this school down or phase 17 

it out, it's still the same thing.  I will 18 

protest you.  19 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  Speaker number 20 

44, - - .  No?  Our speaker list has not been 21 

exhausted, and we're going to transition into 22 

the Q&A portion of the evening.  We have three 23 

questions we're going to respond to, and as I 24 

said, if there are other questions that were 25 
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submitted and we're not responding to them 1 

this evening, they will be included in the 2 

announcement of public comment, which is 3 

published online and made available to the panel 4 

members prior to the vote.  So the first 5 

question is why is it cost effective to phase 6 

out and replace schools?   7 

I'm going to ask the Deputy Chancellor to 8 

respond to this.  9 

MS. GRIMM:  Thank you very much.  First of 10 

all, the main issue here is not cost 11 

effectiveness.  The main issue here is student 12 

performance and opportunities for our children.  13 

Basically the way we fund our schools, the money 14 

followed the student.  So in whichever school 15 

the child is in, we have a per capita allocation 16 

based on the characteristics of the child.  17 

There is some additional cost for a temporary 18 

period while we do the phase in and the phase 19 

out simultaneously, but this is not a money 20 

issue.  21 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  So the second 22 

question is how do the proposed changes impact 23 

the students and staff of PS56, and I'll ask the 24 

planner, Lily Haskin [phonetic], to respond to 25 
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this question. 1 

MS. LILY HASKIN:  Hi, I'm Lily Haskin.  I 2 

work for the Office of Portfolio Management, and 3 

in terms of the question about the impact to the 4 

students and families and the teachers who are 5 

in the building, the DOE does not anticipate 6 

that there will be any impact on the admissions, 7 

the current or future enrollment or the 8 

instructional programing at PS56, nor either of 9 

the two District 75 inclusion programs.  10 

Additionally, I just want to reiterate that we 11 

have determined that there is sufficient space 12 

in the K056 building to accommodate the new 13 

school as it phases in concurrent, if the 14 

proposal's approved, concurrent with the 15 

proposed phase out of Satellite Three.  And then 16 

additionally, as in the case with all collocated 17 

schools, the building council, which is 18 

comprised of the Office of Space Planning in 19 

addition to representatives from all the schools 20 

in the building, they would meet collectively to 21 

make determinations about the programing of the 22 

shared space, which includes the gymnasium, 23 

cafeteria and such.  24 

MS. SOBELMAN:  You can stay up here for the 25 
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next question.  The final question is what is 1 

the replacement plan for Satellite Three, and 2 

again, I'll have Lily respond.  3 

MS. HASKIN:  So as Deputy Chancellor Grimm 4 

read during her summary of the proposal, the 5 

DOE's proposing to open a new district middle 6 

school here, MS351 in the building.  If that 7 

proposal was approved, sixth grade students 8 

could apply for a seat at middle school 351 9 

through the District 13 middle school choice 10 

process with a limited unscreened selection 11 

method.  To be clear, if the proposal was 12 

approved, that school would begin phasing in 13 

gradually one grade at a time, and would begin 14 

serving sixth grade in 2012/13 with 85 to 95 15 

sixth graders.  It would be full scale, serving 16 

students in grade six to eight, in the 2014/2015 17 

school year.  18 

Later this winter and early into the spring, 19 

there will be opportunities for families and 20 

District 13 residents to meet with the new 21 

leader and to attend information session open 22 

houses as they pertain to the opening of the new 23 

middle school.   24 

MS. SOBELMAN:  Thank you.  So as I said, if 25 
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there were other questions that were 1 

submitted, and - - the responses to these 2 

questions, they will be mentioned in the 3 

Analysis of Public Comment, which is published.  4 

I want to thank everyone for joining us this 5 

evening and for our musical interlude and for 6 

everyone being so respectful of each other.  I 7 

really appreciate that, and I think I can speak 8 

for the panel as well.  9 

Again, if additional comments or questions 10 

come up between now and the panel's vote on 11 

February 9th, which will take place at Brooklyn 12 

Tech, please do submit those questions or 13 

comments to D13proposals@schools.nyc.gov, or by 14 

phone to (212) 374-0208.  Thank you again.  This 15 

joint public hearing is officially adjourned.   16 

[END RECORDING] 17 
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